
 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 
 

AGENDA
PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING

May 3, 2013 – 9:00 A.M.

  

Agenda Item Action Page Time 
 

Meeting Location: Department of Commerce, 1011 Plum ST SE, Olympia, WA 98504 

Committee Meetings ...............................................................................................  ........................  7:30-8:30 
 
a) ADMINISTRATION .............................................................................................  ....................... 3 ........... 9:00 

1) Call to Order 
2) Welcome and Introductions ........................................................................  ........................    
3) Approve Agenda: Jennifer Motteler .................................................. Action .................. 1 
4) March 1 Meeting Minutes: Jennifer Motteler  ................................... Action .................. 5 
5) Legislative Updates: John LaRocque .........................................................  ................... verbal 
6) Executive Director Update: John LaRocque...............................................  ................... verbal 

 
b) COMMITTEE REPORT .......................................................................................  ..................... 59 ........... 9:30 

1) Executive Committee: Stan Finkelstein ......................................................  .................... verbal 
2) Communication Committee: Kathryn Gardow ............................................  .....................   61 
3) Policy Committee: Don Montfort .................................................................  ..................   verbal 
4) TA Committee: Steve Stuart .......................................................................  ..................   verbal 

 
c) CONTRACTING ..................................................................................................  ..................... 63 ........... 9:50 

1) CAU Contract Status Report: Mark Barkley ...............................................  ..................... 65 
2) Project Completion Extension Memo: Mark Barkley ...................... Action ................ 66 
3) Notice to Proceed Extension Memo: Mark Barkley ......................... Action ................ 67 
4) Public Works Trust Fund 

a. Clark County Extension Request: Mark Barkley ....................... Action ................ 68 
b. City of Richland Pre-Con Loan Extension: Mark Barkley ......... Action ................ 69 
c. Clallam County PUD Assignment Request: Matt Ojennus ....... Action ................ 71 

 
d) FINANCING OPPORTUNTIES ...........................................................................  ..................... 73 ......... 11:00 

DWSRF 2013 Preliminary List: Denise Clifford ..........................................  ............... handout 
 
e) PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT/IMPLEMENTATION UPDATES ..........................  ..................... 77 ......... 11:20 

Energy Water Efficiency (EWE): Steve Dunk .............................................  ..................... 79 
 

f) INFORMATION AND OTHER ITEMS .................................................................  ..................... 83 ......... 11:30 
1) Predictive Model Update: Myra Baldini ......................................................  ..................... 85 ..................  
2) Academy Update: Lynn Kohn .....................................................................  ............... verbal ..................  

  
LUNCH  
Note:  Anticipated time of Adjournment is 11:30 a.m.  
 
 
NEXT BUSINESS MEETING & RETREAT SCHEDULED: June 6 & 7, 2013, at 9:00 a.m.  
Department of Commerce, 1011 Plum Street SE 
Olympia, WA 98504-2525. Contact the Public Works Board at (360) 725-3151 for further information. 
This publication is available in alternative format upon request. Meetings sponsored by the Public Works Board shall be accessible 
to persons with disabilities. Accommodations may be arranged with 10 days’ notice to the Public Works Board at (360) 725-3151. 



 

2



TAB 1 
Board Administration 

3



 

4



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 
 

 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING  
March 1, 2013 

Department of Commerce (Olympia, WA) 

Board Members 
Guests Present: Staff Present: 

Present: Absent: 

Stan Finkelstein, Chair 
 

Mark Barkley, Dept. of Commerce John LaRocque, 
Executive Director  

Kathryn Gardow, Vice Chair   
Leonard Bauer, Dept. of Commerce Bruce Lund, Manager, 

Regional Services 

Frank Abart  Denise Clifford, Dept. of Health Ann Campbell 

JC Baldwin (by phone)  Mike Doherty, Clallam County Commissioner Cindy Chavez  

Jerry Cummins  Chris Gagnon, Dept. of Commerce Terry Dale  

Tom Fitzsimmons  Paul Haynes, City of Sequim Dawn Eychaner  

Ed Hildreth  Perry Huston, Okanogan County Isaac Huang  

Scott Hutsell  Jim Jones, Clallam County Administrator Lynn Kohn  

Don Montfort  Mike Kits, Clallam County  

Mark “Bubba” Scott  John Kounts, Washington PUD Association  

Darwin Smith  Karen Larkin, Dept. of Commerce Jennifer Motteler  

Steve Stuart  Shelia Lee-Johnston, Dept. of Commerce  Matt Ojennus 

Larry Waters  Cathi Read, Small Communities Initiative  Jacki Skaught 

  Jeff Nejedly, Dept. of Ecology  

  Bob Martin, Clallam County  

  Tom Martin, Clallam PUD   

  Chris McCord, Dept. of Health  

  Jim McEntire, Clallam County Commissioner  

  Steve Misiurak, City of Gig Harbor   

  Rodney Orr, Dept. of Commerce  

 

Administration  

a) Call to order: Chair Finkelstein called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. 

b) Welcome and Introductions: Board members, staff, and guests introduced themselves. 

c) Approve Agenda 

 John LaRocque requested to move Okanagan County and Clallam County to earlier 

on the agenda. ACTION: Ed Hildreth moved to move Okanagan County and Clallam 

County to earlier on the Agenda. Frank Abart seconded. Motion Passed (12-0) 

(Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, 

Smith, Stuart, and Waters) 

 

5



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 
 

d) December 4, 2012, meeting minutes  

 ACTION: Ed Hildreth moved to approve the December 4, 2012, meeting minutes, 

Kathryn Gardow seconded. Frank Abart recused himself due to absence. Motion 

Passed (11-0-1) (Baldwin, Cummins, Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, 

Scott, Smith, Stuart, and Waters; Abart - recusal) 

e) January 16 Meeting Minutes 

 ACTION: Kathryn Gardow motioned to approve the January 16, 2013, meeting 

minutes, Jerry Cummins seconded. Motion Passed (12-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, 

Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, Stuart, and Waters) 

f) Legislative Updates 

 Dawn Eychaner reviewed a handout detailing legislation of interest to the Board  

(attachments, page 1). Dawn noted that Substitute House Bill (SHB) 1969 and SHB 1484 

are aligned; but SHB 1969 is not as comprehensive. Dawn explained that Senate Bill 

5313, which would slightly modify the Board’s project selection criteria, has not been 

moving and is likely dead. Dawn noted the other bills listed are of interest to 

stakeholders, but do not impact the Board directly. 

 Kathryn Gardow asked if House Bill (HB) 1819 requires money; if so, how will it be paid 

for? John LaRocque responded that Will Saunders, with the Department of Commerce’s 

Broadband Office, is doing a fiscal note, and a local government fiscal note is also being 

created. John shared that there are some security concerns with having digital maps of 

infrastructure systems available digitally. 

 Kathryn Gardow reported that she visited Senator Frockt and Representative Pollette; 

the legislators are very interested in promoting the 2014 Construction loan list as it is a 

job creator. Kathryn added that the Executive Committee met with the new Commerce 

Director, Brian Bonlender.  

 Chair Finkelstein elaborated on the Executive Committee’s meeting with Director 

Bonlender, explaining that they discussed recruitment process for John LaRocque’s 

replacement, and that Director Bonlender suggested an outside recruiting firm be 

enlisted in that process to solicit applicants and do the initial screening.  

 Dawn Eychaner reported that SHB 1484 was heard by the House Capital Budget 

committee on the 15th of February and that Stan Finkelstein and Kathryn Gardow 

testified. Dawn reported that the substitute bill was heard and passed out of the Capital 

Budget Committee on Thursday, February 28 and staff saw it for the first time yesterday 

at 10:00 a.m. Dawn explained that at the February 15 Capital Budget Committee 

meeting Representative Dunshee asked the Board to rework Section 10 of the bill, and 

the Executive Committee’s rewrite does appear in the substitute bill with some wording 

changes. 

6



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 
 

 Dawn Eychaner reviewed the handout detailing changes between the original HB 1484 

and the substitute (attachments, page 4), noting that one of the changes is a new $10 

million per project limit.  

 John LaRocque explained that the Board has put close to $120 million into the Tacoma 

pipeline project by giving awards to 4 jurisdictions and that under the Bill’s wording, 

that project would have been capped at $10 million without regard to the number of 

jurisdictions participating in the project. Kathryn Gardow asked if the House wants the 

Board’s input. John LaRocque explained that the opportunity for public comment will be 

when it is with the Senate. Kathryn requested that further discussion of the bill take 

place later in the meeting.  

 John LaRocque reviewed the staff memo (attachments, page 19) requesting to delay the 

opening of the 2015 Construction loan cycle. 

 Stan Finkelstein asked if the application cycle could be delayed until June 1st. John 

LaRocque explained that would be too late in the year to do effective vetting. John 

advised the Board that draft capital budgets should be out by the week of March 26th, 

noting that these will be good indicators of future fund availability. John reported that 

the Director of Commerce has been asked to revisit the Board’s request for the $700 

million budget with Governor Inslee.  

 Action: Don Montfort moved that the application opening date be extended to April 

15th, Larry Waters seconded. Motion Passed. (12-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, 

Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, Stuart, and Waters) 

Contracting 

a) Okanogan County 

 Isaac Huang presented Okanogan County’s request  (attachments page 21) for a two-

year deferral for two loans, a 2004 pre-construction loan and 2006 construction loan for 

the same sewer project. Isaac introduced Perry Huston, Director Okanogan County 

Office of Planning and Development. 

 Jerry Cummins asked why Okanogan (the County) owns a sewer system operated by the 

City of Oroville. Mr. Huston clarified that the County does not own the system.  The 

County agreed to pay to extend the sewer system to the unincorporated growth 

management area while Oroville assumed the improvements to the sewer system 

treatment.  The County used building permit fees to meet the debt service for the sewer 

system loans ; the demand for building permits has declined sharply due to the 

economic downturn; thus, the fees received are insufficient to meet the debt service 

needs.  

 Mr. Huston provided an overview of the project, noting that the County is working on 

overall financial health, just received an A+ bond rating, and is looking at restructuring 

other debt as well. 

7



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 
 

 Kathryn Gardow asked Mr. Huston which of the three options listed in the memo is 

preferred. Mr. Huston responded that a two-year deferral would be the County’s 

preferenceDon Montfort expressed that the Board’s technical assistance program needs 

to address issues like this.  

 ACTION: Don Montfort moved to adopt Option 2 in the memo. Larry Waters 

seconded. 

 Steve Stuart asked if the County was confident that in two years they would have the 

resources to meet the obligations. Mr. Huston replied yes. Steve asked if they charge 

sewer hookup fees. Mr. Huston replied yes. Steve noted that most pro-active planning 

jurisdictions lay down the infrastructure before the growth comes rather than trying to 

catch up with it. Steve noted that as technical assistance develops guidelines he would 

like to see more pro-active approach to infrastructure planning aligned with expected 

growth.  

 Scott Hutsell asked if County .09 funds are growing or decreasing. Mr. Huston noted that 

these funds are stable at the moment because the County didn’t have the tremendous 

growth and retraction in the economy that many other counties experienced. Scott 

asked if initial repayments were planned to come from .09 funds, Mr. Huston replied no, 

they were to be based on building permit revenue. 

 Scott Hutsell explained what .09 funds are for the benefit of the Board. 

 Tom Fitzsimmons asked the current connection fee rate. Mr. Huston explained $3,950 

per permit at the upper limit (there are 3 tiers) and shared that the County is in the 

process of increasing it to $5,000. Tom noted that a lot of hookups would be required in 

order to meet the financial obligation. Tom suggested the Board may want to require 

the County to restructure the revenue stream for repayment, not just the amortization 

schedule. 

 John LaRocque noted that through this action the County is sending a message to 

potential users of .09 funds that they are being dedicated to the purpose of repaying 

Public Works Board debt. 

 Jerry Cummins asked additional questions regarding hookup fees and zoning. Stan 

Finkelstein asked if Oroville is in agreement with the County’s proposal. Mr. Huston 

replied that Oroville is fine with the County’s proposal. 

 Darwin Smith noted that he thinks this is a variable revenue source and is not secure. 

Darwin asked about outstanding debt, and if the land assessed/used has been evaluated 

to create an assessment against it. 

 Perry Huston answered that there is a disconnect between current and future 

development potential, giving the example that an orchard pays now for infrastructure 

needed when sold to a developer. 

 Steve Stuart noted that a partnership with the City of Oroville is needed in order to 

assure that the County doesn’t get stuck with the hookup fees. 

8



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 
 

 Ed Hildreth asked Tom Fitzsimmons if he would like to add an amendment to the 

motion. Tom Fitzsimmons noted that he would like to add clarification that the County 

has stated their plan is 1) the County is responsible for the debt entirely, 2) that the 

County will repay the debt from .09 and not accept any other obligations to the .09 

funds, and 3) they will raise the hookup fees. 

 ACTION: Don Montfort called for the previous question. Jerry Cummins seconded. 

Approved. Stan Finkelstein reiterated that the motion before the board was Option 2. 

Motion Passed (11-1) Voting Yes: Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Fitzsimmons, Gardow, 

Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Stuart, and Waters. Voting No: Smith. 

Break 10:05 a.m. to 10:15 a.m. 

b) Clallam County PUD 

 John LaRocque noted that he had a conversation with Representative Tharinger who 

encouraged the Board to continue working with this project and that it is valuable and 

would like it to move forward if possible. 

 The guests from Clallam County (the County), Clallam County PUD (the PUD), and the 

City of Sequim introduced themselves. 

 Bob Martin presented a PowerPoint to the Board (attachments page 31) 

 Tom Fitzsimmons noted that contract is between the Board and PUD, but that he would 

only be comfortable if the contract was with the Board and the County. Clallam County 

responded that the contract would be assigned to them. Jim Jones, the County 

Administrator noted that they anticipate that the contract would remain with PUD 

because the County was not the original applicant, but that the County would then sign 

an agreement with the PUD to take responsibility for the loan. 

 Don Montfort noted his feeling that it is important for the contract to be with the 

County, not the PUD. Don asked if it is correct that the start date is April 2014, County 

affirmed that this is correct. Don expressed concerns that using the Sequim option could 

create significant delays due to right of way, permits, etc. Don pointed out that the staff 

recommendation notes that the proposed changes to the project would have put the 

project score below the cutoff line for funding recommendation. 

 Matt Ojennus noted that with the Sequim option significant archaeological review will 

be needed, along with tribal consultation. 

 Steve Stuart asked if project design components can change after we sign a contract. 

John LaRocque responded that they can change significantly. 

 Frank Abart noted that staff’s recommendation is that the offer be withdrawn and the 

County apply again. Tom Fitzsimmons asked why the County could not reapply during 

the next cycle and free up the $10 million that has been tied up with this approval. Mr. 

Martin stated that the County is concerned with potential uncertainty of the outcome of 

a new application.  

9



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 
 

 Tom Fitzsimmons proposed that the Board fund the design portion only and that the 

County reapply for the construction funding. Larry Waters asked for clarification on 

staff’s recommendation. Matt Ojennus reiterated the recommendation in the Board 

packet that the loan offer be withdrawn. Larry Waters noted that he is uncomfortable 

with staff’s recommendation and asked for more explanation. John LaRocque 

responded that the project has come under legislative and Office of Financial 

Management scrutiny due to the lack of contract execution for the last 2 years. Mr. 

LaRocque noted that 90 days is the requirement for contract execution and that 2 years 

is the outside of the window of opportunity. He urged the Board to set a date by which a 

contract be executed if the request for extension is granted. 

 Stan Finkelstein noted that the issues including location, ownership/operation should 

have been worked out before they applied two years ago and the uncertainties could 

further delay the project are of significant concern. Stan expressed concern about 

having $10 million languishing. 

 Darwin Smith noted that the County is not qualified to receive loans from the Board due 

to no greenhouse gas policy being adopted, adding that although that is a local choice to 

transfer the loan, and he has concern about that. Darwin suggested the project is not 

truly put together and that, at a minimum, a drop dead date for having the contract 

signed would be necessary. 

 Steve Stuart advocated for the project extension. 

 Larry Waters asked Clallam County to lay out next steps if the Board approves an 

extension of the loan offer. 

 Mr. Murphy noted that they have already drafted an inter-local agreement between the 

County and the PUD and could have it executed in a few weeks. Mr. Murphy noted that 

the county is in process of preparing a Request for Proposals for design and construction 

of the collection system, which could be done in two months, excluding the Sequim 

option.  

 ACTION: Kathryn Gardow moved to approve staff’s recommendation. Don Montfort 

seconded the motion. 

 Tom Fitzsimmons noted he cannot support the motion and that he believes there’s a 

way to keep the project moving. Tom requested that staff come back with 

recommendation for a new offer just for the amount of design, not construction. Stan 

Finkelstein stated that because the legislature approved the project as submitted the 

Board would not have option of modifying project beyond what the legislature 

approved. John LaRocque affirmed this is correct.  

 Ed Hildreth stated he will vote in favor of the motion.  

 Don Montfort asked for clarification on how much match the County has. The County 

responded they have $5 million cash in hand. Don asked if this was enough for design. 

The County affirmed yes. 

10



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 
 

 Larry Waters noted he will vote against the motion, stating that the Board should not 

stand in the way of local progress that has been made. 

 Don Montfort stated that he is not convinced that asking the County to reapply will 

delay the project significantly. 

 Stan Finkelstein asked John LaRocque if the $10 million is rescinded, what the soonest 

date is the County could receive funding if they reapplied. John responded that they 

could receive the funding for 2015 in 2014. Kathryn Gardow pointed out that the limit 

for the 2015 loan list is $5 million as adopted by the Board last month. 

 Darwin Smith asked for clarification on the project cost. The County responded that 

entire project, based on preliminary estimate, would be slightly more than $15 million 

and the preliminary estimate for the Sequim project is $13.8 million. 

 ACTION: Motion failed. (5-7) 

 Voting yes: Kathryn Gardow, JC Baldwin, Ed Hildreth, Darwin Smith, Don 

Montfort (5) 

 Voting no: Jerry Cummins, Tom Fitzsimmons, Bubba Scott, Scott Hutsell, Larry 

Waters, Frank Abart, Steve Stuart (7) 

 ACTION: Tom Fitzsimmons moved that staff be authorized to move into contract 

within the next 30 days and that assignment responsibilities be clarified, along with an 

inter-local agreement entered into. Steve Stuart seconded.  

 John LaRocque noted that if this motion passes, he suggests that staff be 

directed to return to the next board meeting on April 5 with the material the 

Board is asking for. Tom Fitzsimmons clarified his motion to state that if the 

contract isn’t signed by then, the Board will consider the issue again. 

 MOTION PASSED (9-2) 

 Voting yes: JC Baldwin, Ed Hildreth, Darwin Smith, Tom Fitzsimmons, 

Bubba Scott, Scott Hutsell, Larry Waters, Frank Abart, Steve Stuart (9) 

 Voting no: Don Montfort and Kathryn Gardow (2) 

Stan Finkelstein suggested the Board hear the four committee reports, break for lunch, and then finish 

the remainder of the agenda. 

Committee Reports 

a) Executive Committee: Stan Finkelstein gave the Executive Committee Report. 

 Stan reported the Executive Committee met with Brian Bonlender, the new Dept. of 

Commerce Director and discussed plans to hire a new Executive Director upon John 

LaRocque’s retirement. Stan added that the discussion included preserving and 

enhancing the Board’s loan list request and the administrative budget for the program, 

which was reduced by Governor Gregoire from $4.6 million to $3 million. Stan noted 

11



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 
 

that Brian Bonlender expressed sincere interest in meeting with the Board and they 

discussed his participation in the Board’s June retreat.  

 Kathryn noted the Executive Committee also met to discuss Representative Dunshee’s 

request for criteria redesign in the Board’s policy bill. Stan noted that will be discussed 

during the legislative discussion that will be re-addressed this afternoon. 

b) Communication Committee: Kathryn Gardow gave the Communications Committee report. 

 Kathryn Gardow reported on the committee   discussion about moving into social media 

and some suggested changes to the draft social media policy which will be brought to 

the full Board in April. Kathryn explained that the committee discussed the new web 

site. Kathryn also noted the committee wishes to develop a better process to ensure 

that the board doesn’t inadvertently have unexpected public meetings by replying to 

everyone’s email and that a staff person be designated to forward comments from 

members. 

c) Policy Committee: Don Montfort stated there is no policy committee report. 

d) Technical Assistance Committee: Steve Stuart gave the Technical Assistance Committee report. 

 Steve Stuart reported that the Technical Assistance (TA) Committee discussed the 

outcomes of the Northwest Academy and plans for a May academy in Walla Walla. 

Steve reported that Cathi Read with the Small Communities Initiative (SCI) gave a 

presentation to the committee and stated that SCI needs additional funding, as does 

enhanced TA work, both of which are included in the additional administrative funding 

request the Board has put forward. 

 Steve reported that the TA Committee recommends that Stan meet with the Office of 

Financial Management director about the need for enhanced TA and to get information 

from John about the need for enhanced TA. Steve noted that enhanced TA needs to be 

supported by constituent groups in order to support additional administrative funding. 

Break for lunch: 11:45 a.m.-12:20 p.m. 

John LaRocque proposed that staff conduct the website review during lunch. The Board agreed.  

 Rodney Orr reviewed the new Public Works Board website, which is due to be published 

on March 15, 2013. Stan Finkelstein asked if staff will be able to track web site user 

data. Rodney advised yes, using Google Analytics. Stan Finkelstein requested that staff 

report periodically to the Board on use statistics for the web site. 

 Kathryn Gardow noted that the Board will have social media icons linked to the web 

site. Rodney Orr responded that once a social media policy is approved, these will 

appear on web. 

 

Steve Stuart and JC Baldwin left the meeting. 

12



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 
 

Contracting  

a) Whatcom County 

 Denise Clifford with the Dept. of Health updated the Board on the two water systems in 

Whatcom County on the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) loan list and 

noted that the Department seems to be making real progress with these communities 

dealing with the nitrate issues in the area. 

Legislative Update (returned to topic) 

a) Substitute House Bill 1484 

 Kathryn Gardow asked if the $10 million cap in Substitute House Bill 1484 could be a 

problem in the future. John LaRocque noted that it could be cumbersome because it is 

so prescriptive and suggested that Stan Finkelstein test the waters with Representative 

Dunshee to see if a proposed change would be well received before the Board testifies 

on this issue before a committee. 

b) Executive Director Recruitment 

 Stan Finkelstein gave more detail on the Executive Director recruitment discussion with 

Dept. of Commerce Director Brian Bonlender. Stan noted that the Director would like to 

use the same head hunting firm being used by the Governor’s office. Stan also noted the 

job description clearly notes the position would report to the Dept. of Commerce and be 

responsible for both the Community Economic Revitalization Board (CERB) and the 

Public Works Board. 

 John LaRocque noted the recruitment timeline that Cecilia Gardener had forwarded to 

the Board is aggressive and we’re already in danger of falling behind. Kathryn Gardow 

expressed that she sent back comments on the job description and asked what is 

happening with those. John LaRocque responded that he provided those to Karen Larkin 

and that a revised job description would be sent out. 

 Jerry Cummins suggested that Stan Finkelstein have a one-on-one conversation with 

Brian Bonlender to discuss the history of the Board and the position. Stan Finkelstein 

agreed that he will do that. Don Montfort expressed concerns over the difficult 

relationship the Board has had with the Department of Commerce over the past six 

years.  

 

Contracting 

a) Notice to Proceed Memo: Bruce Lund 

 Bruce Lund reviewed the four Notice to Proceed Extension Requests, as articulated on 

page 81 of the Board packet (attachments, page 39).  

13



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 
 

 ACTION: Kathryn Gardow moved to approve the extension requests, Darwin Smith 

seconded. Motion Passed. (10-0) (Abart, Cummins, Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, 

Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, and Waters) 

b) Extension Request Memo: Bruce Lund 

 Bruce Lund reviewed the extension request from Clark County on p. 82 (attachments, 

page 40) of the packet, explaining that  the Board funded portion of the project is 

complete but the County is requesting it be kept open an additional two years. Bruce 

reported that $500,000 has not been drawn down yet, and the County wishes to hold 

the $500,000 and draw it later so it can be used as match for a federal grant. Kathryn 

Gardow asked when it is expected to be drawn. John LaRocque noted it might be best to 

bring this project back to the next meeting with clarification. 

 ACTION: Scott Hutsell moved to defer this item to the next meeting with more detail. 

Frank Abart seconded. Motion Passed. (10-0) (Abart, Cummins, Fitzsimmons, Gardow, 

Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, and Waters) 

c) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 

 Hideaway Mobile Home Park Update 

 John LaRocque reviewed the handout memo (attachments, page 41) from 

Kathryn Wyatt to the Board. John described the project and situation, explaining 

that the Board had requested Kathryn Wyatt to look into legal recourse to get 

the money back. John reported that Kathryn replied that it is not likely. John 

explained that it’s likely the money will be either turned into a grant or go into 

default. 

 Kathryn Gardow asked if the loan was in default. John LaRocque explained that 

they are trying to restructure the loan or to ask Spokane to repay it. John stated 

that the State Revolving Fund does have the ability to award grants, and staff is 

looking at all options to work programmatically to make it better.  

 Ed Hildreth requested clarification of the last sentence of the last paragraph on 

the memo from Kathryn. John LaRocque agreed to get clarification and bring 

more information back to the Board. 

 Scott Hutsell asked if there were any liens; John LaRocque answered no. 

Program Development/Implementation Updates 

a) 2015 Public Works Trust Fund Cycle 

 John LaRocque advised the Board that they took action earlier in the meeting to 

postpone the 2015 loan cycle application to April 15, 2013. John asked that an ad-hoc 

committee be formed for board members to participate in the selection process 

development over the next month or so. 

14



Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 
 

 Scott Hutsell, Kathryn Gardow, Ed Hildreth, Don Montfort, Darwin Smith, and 

Stan Finkelstein volunteered to participate on the committee. Stan Finkelstein 

designated Don Montfort to lead the ad-hoc committee. 

b) Small Communities Initiative (SCI) Budget: John LaRocque 

 John LaRocque explained that the SCI budget is completely dependent on what the 

Board can get from the Office of Financial Management (OFM) in terms of the 

administrative budget. Stan Finkelstein requested that an appointment be made for him 

with the Director of OFM to discuss the matter. 

c) Academy Update  

Lynn Kohn reported on the Northwest academy and lessons learned for carrying 

forward. Lynn noted that it is important to have a room where people can hear, and to 

make it more interactive. Lynn advised the Board that the next Academy is set for May 

22nd in Walla Walla. Kathryn Gardow requested more natural lighting. Lynn agreed, and 

noted that the highlight of the day was the demonstration of an actual project that 

needed assistance, which allowed funders to discuss how the project could get funding. 

John LaRocque added that the key has been the sponsors who have graciously covered 

nearly all the cost of the academies.  

Information and Other Items 

 

a) Public Works Assistance Account (PWAA) Predictive Model Update 

 John LaRocque reviewed the predictive model on page 123 of the packet (attachments, 

page 43).  John reviewed the dashboard handout that  Myra Baldini  produced for the 

Board 

b) Announcement 

Larry Waters announced that he was retiring at the end of May and wanted to say goodbye at 

the meeting Larry thanked the Board and staff for a wonderful experience, and expressed his 

appreciation for the good work of the Board. 

ACTION: Jerry Cummins moved to adjourn the meeting. Ed Hildreth seconded the motion. Motion 

passed. (10-0) (Abart, Cummins, Fitzsimmons, Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, and 

Waters) 

Meeting adjourned at 1:22 p.m. 

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



TAB 2 
Committee Report 

59



 

60



PWB Communications Committee Meeting 
3‐1‐2013 
 

 

Date:  March 26, 2013 

To:  Public Works Board (PWB) 

From:  Cindy Chavez, Board Staff 

Subject:  PWB Communications Committee Notes for March 1, 2013 

7:30 a.m. ‐ 8:45 a.m. 

Attendees 

Board Members      Staff 

Kathryn Gardow      Rodney Orr 

Ed Hildreth         Cindy Chavez 

Scott Hutsell       Matt Ojennus 

Commerce Website: Committee would like the staff to submit infrastructure pictures for the agency 

website. 

PWB Website: Committee reviewed the new PWB website, scheduled to go “live” in mid‐March. Rodney 

informed the committee members that a change management procedure needed to be addressed. The 

committee did not want to require staff to get prior approval but would like to be made aware of any 

substantive changes.  

Social Media: There was a discussion regarding Facebook.  When the PWB Facebook was originally set up 

Rodney used his work email address as the primary contact information. Staff was instructed to look at 

costs and workload to create another email rather than using Rodney’s.   

The question was brought up if a citizen adds a comment should the Board members respond to that 

comment. There was a consensus that making comments was ok as long as the Board member is not 

suggesting staff or the Board take a particular action. It was suggested that we add a comment to the draft 

social media policy regarding the fact that Board members comments do not constitute the position of the 

entire Board. Also the following phrase was suggested to be used when making a comment on Facebook “I 

can’t speak for the entire board.” It was also suggested that Board members generally refrain from 

commenting on the Board Facebook page since this would open the possibility of creating an open public 

meeting. 

Open Public Records/Public Disclosure was also discussed. The committee determined that the site should 

be moderated to prevent comments that would violate Commerce’s social media policy (used by the 

Board as a best practice) for, among other things, discrimination and sexual harassment. 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

May 3, 2013
Board Meeting

61



PWB Communications Committee Meeting 
3‐1‐2013 
 

Emails: The committee discussed the problem that occurs when Board members use “reply to all” when 

responding to a Board email. This could inadvertently constitute an official meeting. For future emails, all 

responses should go through one staff member. The complaint was that the board members generally 

don’t hear back as to the other comments. Staff will be instructed to gather the comments and then send 

them back out to the Board members.  

 

KEY 

→  Item needs follow‐up action 

Name  Person responsible for the assignment 

 

→ Changes to email address for Facebook – Rodney Orr 

 

Agenda Items for next meeting 

 Email procedures 

 Social Media Policy 

 

 

 

 

62



TAB 3 
Contracting 

63



 

64



 

 
DATE: April 16, 2013 
 
TO: Public Works Board 
 
FROM: Mark Barkley, CAU Managing Director 
 
SUBJECT: CAU Contract Status Report 
 
 
Beginning October 2012, we began providing a quarterly report to the Public Works Board that offers a 
snapshot of common activities carried out by CAU.  We hope this gives the Board a better understanding of the 
work that occurs after contract execution. 
 
Number of Contracts Received from PWB from 1/1/2013 – 3/31/2013 
 
PWTF      13 
DWSRF       2 
Other PWB Programs      1 
Total       16 
 
Number of Contracts in Open Status as of 3/31/2013 
 
PWTF     160 
DWSRF    113 
Other PWB Programs     17 
Total      290 
 
Number of Projects Completed 1/1/2013 - 3/31/2013 
 
PWTF      10 
DWSRF       6 
Other PWB Programs       1 
Total      17  
 
Dollars distributed to Clients 1/1/2013 - 3/31/2013 
 
PWTF    $30,804,969 
DWSRF   $11,600,946 
Other PWB Programs  $     179,369 
Total    $42,585,284 
 
 
 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

May 3, 2013
Board meeting 

 

65



 

 

 
 
DATE:  April 16, 2013 
 
TO:  Public Works Board 
 
FROM:  Mark Barkley, CAU Managing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Project Completion Extension Requests 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends extending the contract project completion dates as follows:  
 

Program 
 

Client Contract No. Project 
Loan/Grant 

Amount 
Available to 

Draw  

Original 
Closeout

Date  

Current 
Closeout 

Date 

Proposed 
Closeout 

Date 
DWSRF Longview  DM07-952-014 Water Supply 

and Treatment 
$8,080,000 $3,886,817.08 10/28/11 4/28/13 12/31/13 

Reason for Extension Request: Delays encountered during equipment performance testing.  Additional time 
needed to complete punch list items and system testing.  Project is 95% complete. 

 
 
 

DWSRF Knights of 
Columbus 

Inter-Council 
Association 

DP09-952-023 Water System 
Source of Supply

& Distribution 
System 

$499,950 $101,082.98 6/18/12 2/28/13 8/31/13 

Reason for Extension Request: Delays with compliance requirements and scheduling the A-133 Audit. Additional 
time needed to complete the audit and resolve labor standards issues.  Project is 98% complete. 
 
 

 
DWSRF Whatcom Co 

(Acme) Water 
District No. 18 

05-96300-001 Arsenic Removal $309,508.20 $130,503.26 2/28/10 8/30/11 9/15/14 

Reason for Extension Request: DOH has requested Commerce extend the contract and allow the remaining loan 
funds to be used to determine best course of action to resolve unanticipated copper/lead issues which arose after 
startup of the new treatment process.  The original scope is 100% complete.  The extension will allow the District 
to resolve the new issue. 
 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
The clients have requested extension to their project completion dates.  Staff evaluated the requests through a staff peer 
review process.  DOH has been consulted and agrees with extending the DWSRF projects. 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

May 3, 2013
Board meeting 

 

66



 
DATE:  March 19, 2013  
 
TO:  Public Works Board 
 
FROM:  Mark Barkley, CAU Managing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Notice to Proceed Extension Requests 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends extending the contract Notice to Proceed date as follows:  
 

Program 
 

Client Contract No. Project 
Loan/Grant 

Amount 
Available to 

Draw   

Current 
NTP 
Date 

Proposed 
NTP Date 

 
DWSRF 

 
Clallam County 

PUD 1 

 
DP10-952-010

 
Fairview New 
Water Supply 

Project 

 
$2,047,525 

 
$1,406,220.60 

 
9/17/12 

 
1/31/14 

 
Reason for Extension Request: Delays due to difficulty in locating well site and impacts to environmental review; project 
is now proceeding to construction. 
 
 
 
 
 
DWSRF 

 
Basin City Water 

District 

 
DM10-952-012

 
Basin City Water 

Tower 

 
$1,152,500 

 
$1,034,704.87 

 
9/30/12 

 
6/30/13 

 
 
Reason for Extension Request: Experienced challenges in reaching negotiation process for the property to construct the 
new water tank.  Project projected to go to bid March 2013.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
The clients have requested an extension to their Notice to Proceed date.  The requests have been reviewed with the clients 
and evaluated through a staff peer review.  DOH has been consulted and agrees with extending the DWSRF projects. 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

May 3, 2013
Board meeting

 

67



 

 
 
 
Date: March 19, 2012 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Mark Barkley, CAU Managing Director 
 
Subject: Clark County, PWTF Extension Request 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Recommend 27-Month Extension Request Approval  

(4/1/13 to 7/1/15) 
 

Project Description: I-5/Salmon Creek Interchange & Other Improvements 
 Contract Number PC08-951-008 
 
Budget: PWTF:     $  10,000,000 
 WSDOT/Others: $131,000,000 
    
Project Status:   
This project is a partnership between Clark County, Washington State Department of Transportation 
(WSDOT) and Legacy Health Systems.  Components completed to date are the park and ride, 
county/state roads, and environmental mitigation area.  
 
The scope of work for the board’s loan includes elements funded by WSDOT.  The final component, 
funded by WSDOT (the NE 139th Street bridge structure over the freeways), is currently under 
construction and scheduled for completion by the summer 2015.  Clark County has completed the 
board’s portion of the contract and has requested and obtained permission from the Executive Director 
to request reimbursement for the contract balance of $500,000.  
 
Describe the issue(s) that are leading to the extension request: 
The PWTF portion of the contract is completed, but the scope of work is written in such a way that the 
project cannot be closed until the WSDOT portion is completed – Summer 2015. 
 
Timeline:   
Completion of Construction of I-5/Salmon Creek Interchange is scheduled for Summer 2015.  The 
Board’s portion of the project is 100% complete, but the WSDOT’s portion is 55%.     
 
Request: 
The city is requesting a 27-month extension to allow WSDOT’s portion of the project to complete 
construction. 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

May 3, 2013
Board Meeting

 
 
 
 
 

68



 

 

Public Works Board 
906 Columbia St SW 
PO Box 48319 
Olympia, WA 98504-8319 

 

PR08-951-107  4/25/13 

PWTF LOAN EXTENSION REQUEST AND TERM EXTENSION  
 
Name of Jurisdiction: Richland     Board Action Date: May 3, 2013 
County:    Benton 
Address:  840 Northgate Drive 

   Richland 
WA  99352 
 

 
Public Works Trust Fund Loan Proposed Extension Information 
Loan Number: PR08-951-107 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
1 year extension of contract and 

loan term 

Loan Execution Date: 10/22/2008 
Current Project Completion Date:  6/30/2013 
Proposed Extension Completion Date: 7/1/2014 
Loan Amount:  $1,000,000.00 

 
Project Title:  Pre Construction of Duportail Bridge  
 
Brief Project Description: 
Design for a four-lane (900ft) bridge over the Yakima River connecting 5-lane road between Queensgate Drive 
and SR-240 includes environmental assessment, right-of-way plans and development of bid documents. 
 
Background 
The NEPA environmental review changed from a Documented Categorical Exclusion (DCE) to a full 
Environmental Assessment (EA).  The DCE was completed June 2010. However, a full (EA) was the lowest 
common level of NEPA documentation required by all three federal agencies (FEMA, FHWA and Corps of 
Engineers) involved in the project.   
 
Current status of project 
Preliminary design and engineering has been completed, as is the EA document.  Final environmental decisions 
by FHWA, Corps of Engineers, and FEMA are pending and expected soon. Richland hired a real estate appraiser 
to develop a true cost estimate of right of way plans.  The estimated cost of right-of-way has increased since 
contract issued from $130,000 to $1,240,000, primarily due to better project definition through preliminary design 
and more accurate valuation by the appraiser.  The city has received additional funding from the regional 
transportation planning organization to complete the EA and right-of-way acquisition.  The city would, with PWB 
approval, take their final draw of $250,000.00 later this summer to complete the EA and Right of Way acquisition.  
 
Request 
Richland is requesting a one year extension of project completion and loan repayment period to July 1, 2014. This 
will allow them to take their final draw in order to complete the EA and Right of Way acquisition.  Richland would 
make final loan repayment July 1, 2014.  
 

69



 

70



 
DATE:  March 19, 2013  
 
TO:  Public Works Board 
 
FROM:  Matt Ojennus, PWB Staff 
 
SUBJECT: Clallam County PUD Assignment Request 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Staff will have a handout at the meeting. 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

May 3, 2013
Board meeting

 

71



 

72



TAB 4 
Financing Opportunities 

73



 

74



 
DATE:  March 19, 2013  
 
TO:  Public Works Board 
 
FROM:  Denise Clifford, Department of Health 
 
SUBJECT: 2013 Preliminary List 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Department of Health will have a handout at the meeting. 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

May 3, 2013
Board meeting

 

75



 

76



TAB 5 
Program Development/ 

Implementation Updates 

77



 

78



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Date: April 17, 2013 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Steve Dunk  
 
Subject: Energy/Water Efficiency Loan Update 

 
Background 
 
In the 2012 legislative session, the legislature appropriated $5,000,000 to the Public Works Board to 
implement the Energy & Water Efficiency loan program to local governments.  A competitive 
application process resulted in the Board receiving 12 applications for funding.  One project withdrew 
their application because they received a grant for their project.  At the November 2, 2012 Public Works 
Board meeting, 11 energy & water efficiency projects totaling $4,605,966 were approved for funding, 
leaving $244,034 unobligated for future spending.   
 
Since that time, four more local governments have withdrawn their loan requests.  Reasons given 
include receiving alternative funding and city councils that ultimately decided not  to take on additional 
debt. 
 
The five projects that withdrew their energy/water loan applications left a loan surplus of $1,737,734 
available for funding.  Staff then initiated a search for worthy projects that could take advantage of the 
available surplus. Staff looked to our partner agencies and programs to find solid projects not selected 
for funding through their programs.  Through this process, four unfunded projects have been identified 
from the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, Capital Programs, Unfunded Energy 
Grants, and the Community Economic Revitalization Board (CERB).  
 
Results 
 
Staff assessed these projects to ensure they met the criteria and goals of the EWE program, and are 
recommending them to the Board for funding.  If the Board approves these projects, the EWE program 
will commit all of its available resources to worthy projects.  
 
Action Needed 
 
Staff recommends that the Public Works Board approve funding for the following four projects: 

Port of Willapa  Boiler  Replacement of an old antiquated 
boiler that is meeting emissions 

$250,000 

Douglas County  Hospital 
HVAC & Lighting updates to the 
hospital 

$423,000  

Shelton Transit  Transit Station 
Complete Refurbishment of a 1950's 
building ‐ HVAC & Lighting 

$650,000  

Black Diamond  
Water District 

Water/Motor  Pumps, pipe and turbine replacement  $414,734  

 Grand Total  $1,737,734  

 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

May 2013
Board Meeting

79



 

80



FY 2013 Energy & Water Project Recipients
Jurisdiction Client Type Project Type Project Title Loan Request Total Project Cost

Loan Withdrawls
Tukwila City Swimming Pool Withdrew Prior to Board Approval of Energy Loans $0.00 1,000,000.00

City of Enumclaw City Water 2 MG Reservoir Joint Resealing $200,000.00 200,000.00

City of Ilwaco City Waste Water WWTP Energy Efficiency Improvements $240,700.00 240,700.00

City of Longview City Water Longview Energy & Water Retrofit $1,000,000.00 3,910,866.00

City of Montesano City Waste Water WWPT Energy Savings Upgrade $53,000.00 90,500.00

1,493,700.00$                5,442,066.00$                            

Initial Projects Approved by the Board
Columbia County County Building Youth Building 500,000.00$                    545,000.00$                                

City of Kittitas City Building/Library Kittitas Library/Community Center Energy Upgrades 72,275.00$                      75,200.00$                                  

King County County Waste Water King County's South Plant Agitation Blower Replacement 668,215.00$                    1,000,000.00$                            

City of Goldendale City Building Goldendale Building Energy Upgrades 162,735.00$                    179,000.00$                                

City of Lynden City  Waste Water City of Lynden Waste Water Treatment Plant Upgrades 550,000.00$                    1,542,000.00$                            

Spokane County County Building Community Services Chiller and Controls Upgrades  639,041.00$                    692,147.00$                                

City of Sequim City Waste Water Aerobic Digester Energy Efficiency Improvements $                   520,000.00  $                                520,000.00 

$3,112,266.00 $4,553,347.00

Unobligated Amount in intial Board Approval $244,034.00

Four Loan Withdrawls above $1,493,700.00

Amount left for additional projects $1,737,734.00

New Projects for Approval 
Port of Willapa Boiler Replacement of an old antiquated boiler that is not meeting emission 

standards

$250,000.00 $250,000.00

Douglas County Hospital HVAC & Lighting updates to the hospital $423,000.00 $423,000.00

Shelton Transit Transit Station Complete Refurbishment of a 1950's building ‐ HVAC & Lighting $650,000.00 $4,100,000.00

Black Diamond Water Dist. Water/Motor Pumps, pipe and turbine replacement $414,734.00 $680,000.00

1,737,734.00$                5,453,000.00$                            

Total Project Funding of Initial Projects New Projects
Initial Projects Approved  $3,112,266.00

New Projects $1,737,734.00

Funds for Energy/Water Efficiency Construction $4,850,000.00

81



 

82



TAB 6 
Information and  

Other Items 

83



 

84



% (Actual VS Typical)

118%

94%

50%

52%

96%
Projected Actual

Loan Draws (-) $140,000,000 $133,995,812

GF, Direct Approp & SRF Transfers (-) $127,300,000 $66,002,747

Loan Repayments (+) $229,122,222 $115,690,636

REET and PUT Tax Revenues (+) $83,970,701 $79,027,380

De-Obligations (+) $30,000,000 $35,529,769

Prepared by: Myra Baldini, Board Staff 360.725.3152.

GF, Direct Approp & SRF Transfers (-) $127,300,000 $127,300,000 $66,002,747 

ESTIMATED CASH BALANCE AT THE END OF THE BIENNIUM: $10,000,000

Loan Draws (-) $140,000,000 $151,201,994 $133,995,812 

Loan Repayments (+) $229,122,222 $229,122,222 $115,690,636 

Tax Revenues (+) $83,970,701 $79,186,335 $79,027,380 

De-Obligations (+) $30,000,000 $28,000,000 $35,529,769 

May 3, 2013 Public Works Board Meeting  Report                                                                                                                                                                                                    

Public Works Assistance Account Predictive Model Data for 2011-13 Biennium                                                                             
(Fiscal Years Beginning July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2013)                                                                                                                                                                                                        

Model Updated on April 15, 2013

BIENNIAL KEY FACTOR TYPICAL PROJECTION OUR NUMBER ACTUAL 03/31/2013

$140  

$127  

$229  

$84  

$30  

$134 (96%)  

$66 (52%)  

$116 (50%)  

$79 (94%)  

$35 (118%)  

$0 $50 $100 $150 $200 $250

Loan Draws (-)

GF, Direct Approp &
SRF Transfers (-)

Loan Repayments (+)

REET and PUT Tax
Revenues (+)

De-Obligations (+)

Amount In Millions 

Actual

Projected

Tracking Predictive Model Key Factors: Projected VS. Actual with Four Months Left on the 2011-13 Biennium 

Far Exceeded 

Exceeded 

On Track 

Exceeded 

On Track 



 




